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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
         
SUMMARY OF CHANGES   
 
 
SECTION  SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
 
 
 
The following have been added by full text:  
        AMENDMENT 0003 
SMALL BUSINESS MULTIPLE AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (SB MACC) NAVFAC 
WASHINGTON GOLD IPT (WASHINGTON, BETHESDA, QUANTICO, & JBAB) 
 
The purpose of this amendment is to provide the following: 
 
1.  Revised Price Schedule 
2.  Revised RFI # 2’s response 
2.  Responses to RFIs 
4.  Extend proposal due date/time to 2:00 PM EST AUGUST 16, 2016. 
 
All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 
 
 

Responses to RFIs 
 
Response to RFI # 2 is hereby replaced with: 
 
2.  Page 10 of 129:  States the NAICS Code for the seed project is 238990.  The size standard for this NAICS Code 
is $15M; however, the solicitation is released under NAICS Code 236220 with a size standard of $36.5M.  Please 
confirm the NAICS Code for the seed project. 
 

Response:  The seed project’s NAICS Code is hereby deleted.  
 
15.  Specification Section 092423-2.1 states to “install galvanized metal lath in the event that the required adherence 
cannot be achieved to existing masonry”.   Shall we assume that we will be required to provide the lath or not?  If 
so, for the entire building or just a certain area or percentage?  Please clarify how we should bid this work item. 
 

Response:  Assume new lath for entire building. 
 
25.  Can the length of masonry crack repairs be provided so all contractors are pricing the same amount? The total 
length of repairs will not be known until after the removal of the stucco. 
 

Response:  See Revised Price Schedule. 
 
26.  As there is no way to determine if lath will be needed to adhere the new stucco to the existing masonry can an 
amount of lath be provided so all contractors are pricing the same amount? 
 

Response:  All new stucco will require lath. 
 
40.  Specification Section 040120.70 mentions repointing of masonry.   Is this anticipated to be 100% repoint 
project?  If not, what quantity and/or percentage should we expect to have to perform? 
 

Response:  See Revised Price Schedule. 
 



N40080-16-R-0155 
0003 

Page 3 of 11 
 

 

48.  Drawing A201, Note #1, New Work states to repair and repoint cracked and displaced masonry.  This is an 
unknown amount.  How many square feet do we repair and to what degree is the repair? 
 

Response:  See Revised Price Schedule. 
 
50.  The amount of Masonry repair is unforeseen this can cause a big variation on cost. Please clarify the amount of 
masonry repair needed? 
 

Response:  See Revised Price Schedule. 
 
51.  Please confirm, for Technical Factor 1 – Construction Experience (i) Exterior Building Renovation, it is 
acceptable to use projects which scope entailed a major shore facility repairs/renovations to existing piers and 
associated utilities and infrastructure? We have an exterior shore facility alteration/renovation marine/pier project 
completed at the United States Naval Academy (one of the SBMACC NAVAFC IPT Blue sites) that we would like 
to use in response to Technical Factor 1 – Construction Experience (i) Exterior Building Renovation. Exterior shore 
facility alteration/renovation projects of this construction type have routinely been issued as part of the past 
NAVFAC SBMACC and SMACC projects. This project is in keeping with NAVFAC’s Pre-Proposal Conference 
Agenda which states “the intent of this contract is to affect repairs, renovations, new construction and alterations to 
shore facilities, and utilities….” This project involved the use of multi-discipline trades i.e. carpentry, miscellaneous 
metal, timber pile driving, divers, mechanical and electrical. This approach has been acceptable for prior NAVFAC 
Technical Proposals.  
 
 Response:  Yes. 
 
52.  Please confirm the cover, title page, table of contents, tab dividers, and tab headers are excluded from the page 
limit count? 
 

Response:  Yes. 
 

53.  Solicitation page 12 of 129, Volume 2: Price Proposal states Offeror shall submit one copy whereas page 1 of 
129, Block 13, states original and 3 copies and page 24 of 129 states 1 original and 1 copy. Please confirm only one 
copy is required. 
 
 Response:  See Proposal Organization and Number of Copies on page 12 of the RFP. 
 
54.  Please confirm it is acceptable to submit a Price Proposal CD-ROM, with the SEED Project’s Price Schedule 
without the Total price included/entered? 
 

Response:  Yes, as long as the completed Price Schedule is submitted as instructed in according with 
the RFP. 

 
55.  During the Pre-Proposal site visit, due to safety concerns, the Offerors were not permitted access to the roof 
area. In lieu of affording the Offerors access, the Gov. agreed to take photographs of the roof area and issue them as 
part of an Amendment to the Offerors. We respectfully request the Gov. provide additional photographs of the entire 
roof area for our use. 
 
 Response:  See the Roof Inspection Report 
 
56.  RFP Drawing A-201, New Work Key Note # 1, states to "repair and repoint cracked and displaced masonry". 
This is referring to the substrate beneath the existing stucco that is to be removed and is impossible to quantify until 
the substrate has been exposed. Therefore, what assumptions should be made for bidding purposes in terms of the 
quantities of repair, repointing and displacement repairs? We request NAVFAC provide the Offerors quantities for 
their use in developing their estimates. 
 

Response:  See revised Price Schedule. 



N40080-16-R-0155 
0003 

Page 4 of 11 
 

 

 
61.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 35 26, paragraphs 1.6.1.1.2 and 1.1.6.1.1.5. Please advise if the SSHO 
can perform the duties of the Project Superintendent?  
 

Response:  See RFI # 12 response. 
 
64.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 35 29.13, paragraphs 1.7.1 and 1.7.2. Please advise if these are the same 
individuals or are two separate individuals required for this project? 
 

Response:  See RFI # 12 response. 
 
65.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 35 26, paragraph 1.6.1.1 and Specification Section 01 35 29.13, 
paragraph 1.7.2. Are these the same individuals or are two separate individuals requires for this project? 
 

Response:  See RFI # 12 response. 
 
66.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 35 29.13, paragraph 1.7.3. Please advise if this paragraph applies to this 
project? 
 

Response:  Personnel descriptions are minimum qualifications for individuals as needed to comply 
with the SSP, EM-385, CFR’s etc.  For instance, the Occupational Physician indicated in 1.7.3 will be 
involved in compliance with 02 82 16.00 20, 1.3.2.2 and any other requirement for an Occupational 
Physician.  

 
67.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 35 29.13, paragraph 1.7.5. Please advise if this shall be their only duty 
or if they can perform additional duties? 
 

Response:  Personnel descriptions are minimum qualifications for individuals as needed to comply 
with the SSP, EM-385, CFR’s etc.   

 
68.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 45 00.00 20, paragraph 1.5.1.1. Please advise if the QC Manager may 
perform the duties of the Environmental Manager? 
 

Response:  No. 
 
69.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 45 00.00 20, paragraph 1.5.5. Please advise if this paragraph applies to 
this project? 
 

Response:  No. 
 
70.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 57 19.00 20, paragraph 1.4.3. Please advise if this paragraph applies to 
this project? 
 

Response:  Yes. To be clear, this is the minimum requirement for working on a Marine Corps Base 
where encountering UXO is a possibility. 

 
71.  Please refer to Specification Section 02 41 00, paragraph 3.1.12. Please confirm we are required to salvage all 
equipment and fixtures and transport them to a designated Gov. storage area. 
 

Response:  Yes. 
 
76.  Please refer to RFP Drawing A-101, General New Work Note 1. Note 1 makes reference to Haz Mat Drawings. 
We do not find any Hazardous Materials Drawings provided as part of the RFP documents. Please provide. 
 

Response:  See RFI # 8 response. 
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87.  Please refer to RFP Drawing A-204, Sheet Note 11. Please provide a detail sketch/drawing of the existing 
decorative façade element required to be replicated. 
 

Response:  Comply with sheet note 11. 
 
103.  Page 12 of the solicitation states that Volume 1: Technical Proposal shall be provided in original and three 
copies, with one complete electronic copy.  It further states that Volume 2: Price Proposal shall be provided in 
original and one copy, with one complete electronic copy.  Page 24 of the solicitation states that two copies of the 
SF 1442, including representations and certifications are to be submitted, and one copy of the price proposal is to be 
submitted.  Please clarify these potential discrepancies. 
 

Response:  See Proposal Organization and Number of Copies on page 12 of the RFP. 
 
 
104.  Is it correct to say that the General Contractor will be required to have a full time on site full time 
Superintendent, SSHO and a QC Manager on this project and that the Superintendent cannot be the SSHO or QC 
Manager. Please advise. 
 

Response:  See RFI # 12 response. 
 
106.  We do not see where the outline of Building 1001 is located in civil Drawing. Could you please locate the 
building on the Civil Drawings? 
 

Response:  It is indicated by the lines in the location of Building 1001 with Building 1001 written next 
to them, sometimes including the finished floor elevation. 

 
107.  We will coordinate only with Gas Company on relocation of gas line.  Contradictory note:  5/C-001 and note 
C-104. 
 

Response:  The Gas Line is indicated in the drawings as remove and relocated as required. This 
effort shall be included in the construction contract with no additional cost to the government at a 
later date. 

 
110.  Does the Asbestos and Lead abatement need to be in full containment? 
 

Response:  See RFI # 7 response. 
 
112.  Please confirm there is no new or retrofit sprinkler work. 
 

Response:  There is no Fire Protection portion of the bid documents. There is no reconfiguration of 
the building that would require a reconfiguration of the existing sprinkler. Any functional sprinkler 
equipment will need to be functional upon completion of the contract. 

 
113.  We are a new JV and do not have a VETS 100 report as the JV. We have individual company VETS 100 
reports. Can we submit our individual VETS 100 reports to meet the requirement of p.12 – Section 1.0 Proposal 
Organization and Format, Item B – Volume 2 – Price Proposal – item 6? 
 

Response:  Yes. 
 
117.  As a suggestion -  a EPDM or TPO roof system is better suited for this building. 
 

Response:  Please provide a bid for the Construction Project as indicated in the construction 
documents and specifications. 
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118.  Can we manipulate Attachment C into our own word document? Or do we have to use the actual form 
provided? 
 

Response:  Attachment C is MANDATORY and SHALL be used to submit project information. 
 
119.  What is the correct Font size for the is solicitation no less than 10 font or 10 font throughout? 
 

Response:  Text pages 8-1/2 x 11 format, font size 10. 
 
120.  Have all Lead Paint and Asbestos locations been identified? 

 
Response:  See RFI # 7 response. 

 
121.  Will parking for workers be available at a nearby location? 

 
Response:  There is limited parking in the area. Existing parking will not be reserved for the 
construction workers. 

 
122.  What area will be available for mobilization, material storage, staging area and construction trailers? 
 

Response:  This will be determined during the kick-off meeting, and will most likely include the area 
north of the building. 

 
123.  Unpopulated SBA approved JVs do not carry any actual employees.  Under FAR 52.222-38 Compliance with 
Veteran’s Employment Reporting Requirements; will evidence of the individual participating JV firms compliance 
be acceptable? 
 

Response:  Refer to the RFP for detail. 
 
124.  Have all Lead Paint and Asbestos locations been identified?  Will the Govt. provide the locations? 
 

Response:  See RFI # 7 response. 
 
125.  What containment will be required for the removal of the exterior finishes? 
 

Response:  See RFI # 7 response. 
 
129.  Is CSX adding a third rail and if so, what is its location to the proposed retaining wall? 
 

Response:  Yes, as indicated on sheet C101. The location of the retaining wall is shown on C101. 
 
130.  Are taxes required to be paid on this project or will a tax exempt certificate be provided? 
 

Response:  Yes. 
 
133.  Please reference specification 02 82 16.00 20 and 02 83 13.00 20, although specifications have been provided, 
how are we to quantify these scopes of work with the hazardous materials survey, and/ or scope indicated on the 
drawings? 
 

Response:  See RFI # 7 response. 
 
134.  As pertains to specification 04 01 20.70, and drawings A201, new work key note 1: To what extent, since this 
is an unknown condition, should we quantify the pointing and crack sealing for this scope of work? And what 
quantity should we use when pricing the repair of Masonry? And what type of Masonry unit are they? 
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Response:  See Revised Price Schedule. 
 
135.  Please reference drawing C-102, note that the boundaries for “Limit of Disturbance” encroaches on the 
Railroads area of work. To what extent is coordination required? Whom do we contact for interface on this scope of 
work? And how does this affect our bid? 
 

Response:  Coordinate through Government representative during construction. 
 
138.  Section 01 14 00 Page 5 Paragraph 1.4.4 says to relocate movable furniture as required. Please provide a  list 
of moveable furniture be given along with a list of machines and equipment that will need temporary protection? 
 

Response:  This will need to be coordinated during construction. Furniture will be relocated and 
protected as necessary to support the construction effort. 

 
139.  Section 01 35 29.13 Page 8 Paragraph 1.1, Medical Surveillance Program. Please confirm this will be a 
requirement for this project and that the services of an Occupational Physician and shower facilities will be required.  
 

Response:  Yes. 
 
140.  Section 01 57 19.00 20 age 10, Paragraph 1.4.3. UXO is mentioned to be a possibility for this project. Will a 
UXO Tech be required to be on site during all excavation activities? 
 

Response:  No, the project is not within a known UXO range. 
 
141.  Section 01 57 19.00 20 Page 16, Paragraph 3.1. States to empty dumpsters at a minimum of once per week, 
please provide specific direction on this requirement.  
 

Response:  Dumpsters, when on site, will need to be emptied at a minimum of once per week. 
 
142.  Section 04 01 20.70 Page 6 Paragraph 1.5.1.3. Please confirm that Masons need to have 5 years of experience 
with Historic Masonry projects. 
 

Response:  Confirmed. 
 
147.  C-104 shows a retaining wall to be completed by the Railroad, please advise if there is any easement or 
additional requirements working so close to railroad property.  
 

Response:  See response to RFI#27. 
 
148.  A-001 Note 25 “Remove abandoned pipe, ducts” and equipment”, does this note apply for items not shown in 
the drawings? 
 

Response:  See response to RFI#16. 
 
149.  A-201 Please quantify crack repair in a LF method for bid purposes. 
 

Response:  See Revised Price Schedule. 
 
150.  A-203, Note 9  Please provide a not to exceed distance for moving of the wood shed.  
 

Response:  To location indicated with note 16. 
 
153.  Please confirm a Marine Pier replacement or alteration of significant complexity and multi –disciplined can be 
considered an exterior renovation.  
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Response:  Yes. 
 
154.  Reference:  Scheduling, per Specification Section 011400, paragraph 1.3.e “Per Section 01 11 00, Section 
1.4.1, there are 3 definable areas of work.  Each shall have its own independent schedule without tie to the other 
areas of work.”  As this is one project can these 3 areas of work be included in the in the same schedule with not ties 
between their tasks except for NTP and project completion.  
 

Response:  Three separate schedules shall be provided to demonstrate the contractors understanding 
that a delay in one area of work will not affect either of the other two areas of work. Providing one 
schedule with three areas of work does not sufficiently demonstrate such an understanding. 

 
155.  Reference: Masonry cleaning & repairs, Specification Section 04 01 20.70 includes a detailed narrative for the 
masonry cleaning and repairs that may be required on this project.  As the exterior façade of the building is currently 
covered with a stucco/paint finish the amount of repairs cannot be determined at this time.  Can we be provided with 
the quantity of each type of repair that should be included in our proposal and then provide unit prices to delete/add 
to the quantities provided? 
 

Response:  See Revised Price Schedule. 
 
156.  Reference: Building Access, Per Specification section 01 14 00 the building shall remain in operation during 
the entire project.  As we are to remove and replace the existing pavement at the building access road is there 
another means of access to the building or will this work need to be performed in phases? 
 

Response:  Pavement work will not need to be phased to allow constant use. Coordination, through 
the Construction Manager will be required with a goal of minimizing disturbance to building tenants 
and operation. 

 
160.  Reference:  HVAC Equipment Replacement, Per the mechanical drawings we are replacing much of the 
existing mechanical equipment as part of this project.  As the building is to remain operational during this project 
are we to provide temporary HVAC?  
 

Response:  See RFI 170 response. 
 
164.  Reference:  Past Performance Questionnaire, In lieu of a CPARS or PPQ provided in the RFP package, can 
the Offeror submit an alternate, formal Past Performance Questionnaire?   
 

Response:  While the Government may elect to consider data from other sources, the burden of 
providing detailed, current, accurate and complete past performance information rests with the 
Offeror. 

 
165.  During the site visit an environmental report was referenced, please provide the report. 
 

Response:  See RFI # 7 response. 
 
166.  Is there other hazmat materials inside the building besides those on the exterior of the building? If yes, what is 
the basis of the proposal for the cost of this work? 
 

Response:  See RFI # 7 response. 
 
167.  Can a basis for the quantity of exterior façade substrate crack repair be provided for pricing purposes? 
 

Response:  See Revised Price Schedule. 
 
169.  Please clarify if the offeror can use previously submitted PPQs or CPRAS as proof of Past Performance. Under 
Factor 3, Past Performance, it states in the second paragraph, “Offerors shall not incorporate by reference into their 
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proposal PPQs or CPARS previously submitted for other RFPs/ However this does not preclude the Government 
from utilizing previously submitted PPQ information in the past performance evaluation.” 
 

Response:  Yes; however, Offerors shall not incorporate by reference into their proposal PPQs or 
CPARS previously submitted for other RFPs. 

 
170.  Any temporary cooling requirements while the cooling tower is being replaced? 
 

Response:  No, but coordination with the Construction Manager shall be required with the goal of 
minimizing disturbance to the building tenants. 

 
180.  01-91-00.0040 1b. makes mention of LEED. Please confirm there are no LEED requirements for this project. 
 

Response:  There are no LEED Requirements on this project. 
 
193.  Drawing A201 New Work Key Note 2 indicates to repair and re-point cracked and displaced masonry; 
however, the masonry wall is currently concealed behind existing stucco.  Please provide the extent of masonry 
repair and repointing required. 
 

Response:  See revised Price Schedule. 
 
195.  Please confirm any building tenants will relocate from the second floor of the building prior to the roof 
replacement construction activities. 
 

Response:  Building tenants will not relocate from the second floor during roof replacement 
activities. 

 
198.  Please advise if the QC Administrative Assistant is required to be onsite full time or only as needed by the 
Quality Control Manager. 
 
Response:  The position is as needed by the QCM. 
 
199.  Please confirm this project is not tax-exempt. 
 

Response:  Confirmed. 
 
202.  Hazmat report identifies high levels of Lead dust found on interior floors.  To what extent is the 
decontamination of floors required?  Only rooms where new work is performed or all areas identified in the report? 
 

Response:  Only areas where new work is performed. 
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N40080-16-R-0155 
SEED PROJECT’S PRICE SCHEDULE – REV 1 

REPAIR BUILDING 1001 AND INTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS FOR DAPS  
MCB QUANTICO, VA 

 
 
ITEM   DESCRIPTION    PRICE 
 
0001   BASE ITEM 0001:  Exterior and Interior Repairs   
 

BASE ITEM 0001: shall be the entire work complete in 
accordance with the RFP specifications and drawings Concerning 
the Exterior and Interior Repairs excluding those items indicated in 
item 0002, 0003, and 0004.   
 

Price for Item 0001       $______________ 
    

0002  BASE ITEM 0002:  Roof Deck 
 

Price for repair or replacement of roof deck as needed to complete 
repair roof. 
 

Unit # of Units  Unit Price  

 

  SF      20,000  $   

 

Price for Item 0002       $______________ 
 

 
0003  BASE ITEM 0003:  Brick and Mortar Repair 
 

Price for repair of brick and mortar including repointing as needed 
to complete building exterior repair limited to 10% of the building 
exterior wall square footage.  
 

Unit       Unit Price  

 

  SF  $   

 

Price for Item 0003       $______________ 
 

 
0004   Loading Dock Improvement  
 

BASE ITEM 0004:  shall be the entire work complete in 
accordance with the RFP specifications and drawings concerning 
the Loading Dock Improvements. 

    
Price for Item 0004       $______________ 
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Total Price for All Items 0001 – 0004:    $______________ 
 
 
Notes:   

(1) Offerors shall provide firm fixed prices for Items 0001, 0002, 0003 and 0004 on the Price Schedule.  
No provisions will be made for economic adjustments.  
 

(2) The magnitude of construction is between $1,000,000 and $5,000,000. 
 

(3) Contract duration is 360 calendar days after contract award. 
 

(4) The Offeror’s price shall be valid for 180 days from the receipt of proposals. 
 

 
Name & Address of Firm Submitting Offer: 

______________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________ 

 

Signature: ___________________________________ 

 

Phone: ______________________________________ 

 

Email: ______________________________________ 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AMENDMENT(S):___________________________ 

  
 
(End of Summary of Changes)  
 


